June 2012

Ohio Medicaid Assessment Survey: OMAS

Recoding Guide 2nd DRAFT

Prepared by

RTI International 3040 Cornwallis Road Research Triangle Park, NC 27709

Contents

1	Introduction 1					
	1.1	1.1 Procedures for Coding Open-ended Questions				
	1.2	Interviewer Training				
	1.3	Monito	ring Quality of Data Collection1			
	1.4	Manua	I Recoding of Open-ended Questions1			
2	Reco	ode Gui	ide 3			
_			Question: B21a			
			Question: B4Ca1			
		2.1.3	-			
		-	Question: F67a			
			Question: F67G			
		2.1.6	Question G71a new9			
		2.1.7				
		2.1.8	Question G72a_1			
			Question G72c 1			
		2.1.10	Question G72d_1			
			Question G73DA314			
			Question: I90c			
		2.1.13	Question J100Ca1			
		2.1.14	Question NJ100f1			
		2.1.15	Question: J100g1			
		2.1.16	Question: J104d			
		2.1.17	Question: J117b1			
		2.1.18	Question: K99a21			
		2.1.19	Question N137aOth			
		2.1.20	Question: N137e			
		2.1.21	Question: NF67b			
		2.1.22	Question: NF67C			
		2.1.23	Question: NF68a			
		2.1.24	Question: NK106			
		2.1.25	Question: NK99A			
		2.1.26	Question: NO139			
		2.1.27	Question: P150			
		2.1.28	Question: B7			
		2.1.29	Question: S9			
		2.1.30	Question: S17			

1 Introduction

1.1 Procedures for Coding Open-ended Questions

Survey questionnaires often include open-ended questions that permit a respondent to provide an unstructured response of varying length and detail. Such responses may provide rich information that otherwise would not have been learned and insight into areas not anticipated by the survey developer.

In the 2012 OMAS survey, the type of open-ended question presented takes the form of an 'Other (specify)' option within a closed-ended question. In this instance, a respondent may choose to answer in his or her own words and the response is recorded verbatim by the interviewer. In post processing, these verbatim answers can then be coded according to existing codes and/or new codes can be applied to these answers.

This document describes the procedures followed by RTI International staff to collect accurate data, monitor data quality, code responses, and ensure the quality of coding.

1.2 Interviewer Training

Each 'new to project' interviewer is trained in-person in the proper techniques of collecting verbatim data; additionally, each interviewer is provided a manual that includes these techniques. More specifically, interviewers are instructed to carefully listen to what the respondent says and enter the response verbatim, exactly as it was given by the respondent. In cases where the question permits probing and the response is unclear, interviewers are trained to obtain a more complete or specific answer using appropriate neutral or non-directive probing techniques. Interviewers are also trained to follow conventions at all times to ensure that the responses entered accurately reflect the respondents' answers and to guarantee that the data are collected in the same systematic manner.

1.3 Monitoring Quality of Data Collection

Open-ended questions are monitored for data quality on a routine basis. Quality Assurance Monitors observed interviewing and documentation techniques at the time of survey. Weaknesses in method were addressed with interviewers as quickly as appropriate, with specific details of what deficiency occurred and how situations should be addressed in the future. Any potential problems or suggestions were conveyed to the manager of the data collection center.

1.4 Manual Recoding of Open-ended Questions

The following describes the procedures followed by RTI International staff to code open-ended responses.

The manual coding of open-ended survey responses carries a variety of quality assurance steps to ensure the validity and reliability of data. Open-ended data recoding is a two person job at minimum. For the first round of recoding, two staff members recoded open-ended responses based on a previous codebook and developed new codes where appropriate. Their work was done in collaboration, not independent of each other. After the recoding had been completed, the project methodologist reviewed the new codes and suggested recoding to look for consistency and review any discrepancies

2 Recode Guide

2.1.1 Question: B7

- B7. Is //your/PERSON FROM S1's// primary health insurance plan family coverage, single coverage, coverage for //you/PERSON FROM S1// and //you/his/her// spouse only, or some other type?
- 01 FAMILY COVERAGE
- 02 //SELF/PERSON FROM S1// AND SPOUSE ONLY, EXCLUDES CHILDREN
- 03 SINGLE COVERAGE

04 SINGLE PLUS ONE (CHILD)

Includes myself and my daughter/son

05 SINGLE PLUS ONE (NON-CHILD)

• Includes "coverage plus one" and domestic partners

- Example includes qualifying answers such as 'great', 'adequate' and 'not very good' as well as 'medical, optical, dental, prescriptive drugs'
- 97 SOME OTHER TYPE OF ARRANGEMENT
- 98 DK
- 99 REFUSED

2.1.2 Question: B21a

B21a. //ASK IF B21=01//

What was the main reason your// PERSON FROM S1's// previous health insurance ended?

- 01 LOST JOB, RETIRED, OR CHANGED EMPLOYERS
- 02 GOT DIVORCED/ SEPARATED/DEATH OF SPOUSE
- 03 EMPLOYER STOPPED OFFERING INSURANCE
- 04 EMPLOYER DID NOT OFFER HEALTH INSURANCE/NOT ELIGIBLE FOR COVERAGE THROUGH EMPLOYER
- 05 INSURANCE TOO EXPENSIVE/ CAN NOT AFFORD THE PREMIUM
- 06 EMPLOYER CHANGED PLANS
- 07 AGED OUT
 - Includes turning 65, becoming eligible for Medicare or 2) no longer eligible for employer's health plan.

08 EMPLOYEE DECIDED TO CHANGE PLANS

09 BECAME A SECONDARY PLAN

- Examples include 'Secondary', 'became secondary', 'had to pay for preventative care'.
- 97 OTHER
- 98 DK
- 99 REFUSED

2.1.3 Question: B4Ca1

B4Ca1. Which Medicaid plan //are you/is person in S1/ covered by?

- 01 Healthy Families
- 02 Healthy Start
- 03 Medicaid for the Aged, Blind and Disabled
- 04 Passport Waiver
- 05 Ohio Home Care Waiver
- 06 Individual options, IO, Level One, or Transitions Waiver
- 10 AMERIGROUP Community Care
- 11 Buckeye Community Health Plan
- 12 CareSource
- 13 Molina Healthcare
- 14 Paramount Advantage
- 15 Unison Health Plan
- 16 WellCare

- Examples include AARP, Ohio Department of Human Services, Seneca County Services,
- 97 OTHER
- 98 DK
- 99 REFUSED

2.1.4 Question: C3a

- C3a. Why do you no longer have this coverage?
- 01 EARN TOO MUCH MONEY (SUCH AS NEW JOB THAT PAYS MORE MONEY)
- 02 OBTAINED OTHER COVERAGE (SUCH AS NEW/BETTER JOB WITH BENEFITS, COMPANY CHANGED TO NEW PLAN ETC,)
- 03 NO LONGER DISABLED OR DO NOT QUALIFY AS DISABLED.
- 04 DO NOT RECEIVE WELFARE/CASH ASSISTANCE/ADC/TANF
- 05 OTHER REASON (EXPIRATION OF BENEFITS, CHANGE IN AGE, CHANGE IN MARITAL STATUS, PREGANCY STATUS, CUSTODY, LIVING ARRANGMENTS)
- 06 NOT SURE WHY
- 07 DO NOT NEED ANYMORE IN GOOD HEALTH
- 08 DO NOT NEED ANYMORE
- 09 PAPERWORK DELAY OR PROBLEMS
- 10 WAITING TO BECOME ELIGIBLE FOR COVERAGE
- 11 DO NOT WANT TO GO THROUGH APPLICATION PROCESS AGAIN
- 97 OTHER
 - Examples include 'no longer eligible' and 'ran out'
- 98 DK
- 99 REFUSED

2.1.5 Question: F67a

- F67a. What kind of place //do you/does PERSON FROM S1// go to most often? Is it a clinic or health center, a doctor's office or HMO, a hospital emergency room, a hospital outpatient department, or some other place?
- 01 CLINIC OR HEALTH CENTER
- 02 DOCTOR'S OFFICE OR HMO
- 03 HOSPITAL EMERGENCY ROOM (GO TO NF67b)
- 04 HOSPITAL OUTPATIENT DEPARTMENT
- 06 DOES NOT GO TO ONE PLACE MOST OFTEN (GO TO NF67b)

07 PHARMACY

• Includes any mention of pharmacy or pharmacist.

08 FRIEND/FAMILY MEMBER

• Includes any mention of going to family member or friend (overwhelming majority of these have a family member who is doctor/nurse).

09 INTERNET

• Includes any mention of using an online health service such as a nurse or WebMD.

10 ALTERNATIVE CARE

• Examples include 'herbalist', 'chiropractor', 'religious beliefs', 'homeopath'

11 PERSONAL NURSE/CAREGIVER

- Examples include 'no where', 'wherever they send me', 'health department/facility', 'Medical foundation', 'Union care center'
- 97 SOME OTHER PLACE (GO TO NF67b)
- 98 DK (GO TO NF67b)
- 99 REFUSED (GO TO NF67b)

2.1.6 Question: F67G

- F67G Can you please tell me why was it a big problem for //you/PERSON FROM S1// to see a specialist?
- 01 NO SPECIALIST NEARBY
- 02 TOO EXPENSIVE
- 03 INSURANCE PLAN RESTRICTIONS/RULES
- 04 DIFFICULTY OR DELAY IN GETTING AN APPOINTMENT
- 05 CANNOT GET TO THE OFFICE/CLINIC (TOO FAR AWAY, NO TRANSPORTATION)
- 06 CHILD/ADULT CARE PROBLEM
- 07 NO INSURANCE

08 DIFFICULTY GETTING A REFERRAL/SPECIALIST TO ACCEPT PATIENT

• Examples include 'I don't have a doctor', 'doctor needs to appoint one', 'could not get a specialist to take the teeth out'

- Examples include 'Needs surgery', Health issues (e.g. GERD, Pain), 'Big problem because of me', 'Could not get help'
- 97 OTHER
- 98 DK
- 99 REFUSED

2.1.7 Question G71a_new

- G71a_new. What is the main reason //you/PERSON FROM S1//did not work/have a job or business/ last week?
- 01 TAKING CARE OF HOUSE OR FAMILY
- 02 GOING TO SCHOOL
- 03 RETIRED / ELDERLY
- 04 ON A PLANNED VACATION FROM WORK
- 05 ON FAMILY OR MATERNITY LEAVE
- 06 TEMPORARILY UNABLE TO WORK DUE TO HEALTH REASONS
- 07 HAVE JOB/CONTRACT AND OFF-SEASON (SEASONAL EMPLOYMENT)
- 08 ON LAYOFF /**FIRED/LOST JOB**
- 09 LOOKING FOR WORK
- 10 DISABLED
- 11 DID NOT WANT OR NEED TO WORK
- 12 HEALTH PROBLEMS, NOT SPECIFIED
- 13 UNEMPLOYED, REASON NOT GIVEN
- 14 SELF-EMPLOYED
- 15 UNSKILLED
 - Examples include 'Language barrier', 'Does not know how to do things'
- 16 TRANSPORTATION ISSUES
- 17 LEGAL ISSUES
 - Examples include 'Felonies', 'Incarcerated'
- 18 UNEMPLOYED, REASON GIVEN
 - Examples include 'No one hiring', 'Recent graduate', 'Never worked'
- 97 OTHER
- 98 DK
- 99 REFUSED

2.1.8 Question: G71B

- G71B. /Do you/Does PERSON FROM S1// work for the government, private industry, or //are you/is he/ she// self-employed?
- 01 GOVERNMENT
- 02 PRIVATE INDUSTRY
- 03 SELF-EMPLOYED
- 04 **RETIRED**
- 05 UNEMPLOYED
- 06 UNCLEAR
 - Examples include 'Works at school', 'Mechanic drills', 'Office'

- Examples include 'Fast paced', 'Downtown', 'No comment'
- 97 OTHER
- 98 DK
- 99 REFUSED

2.1.9 Question G72a_1

- G72a_1. Does //your/PERSON FROM S1's// employer or union offer coverage to employees only, **or** to both employees and their families **or** to both employees and their spouses only?
- 01 EMPLOYEES ONLY
- 02 EMPLOYEES AND THEIR FAMILIES
- 03 EMPLOYEES AND SPOUSE ONLY (NOT CHILDREN)
- 04 DOES NOT OFFER INSURANCE

- Examples include 'Everyone', 'Full time employees', 'Whatever you choose'
- 97 OTHER
- 98 DK
- 99 REFUSED

2.1.10 Question G72c_1

- G72c_1. //Are you/Is PERSON FROM S1// **not** participating in //your/his/her// employer or union health insurance plan because the plan costs too much, because //you have/he/she has// other insurance, because //you do/he/she does//**not** need or want insurance, or for some other reason?
- 01 COSTS TOO MUCH
- 02 HAVE OTHER INSURANCE
- 03 HOPE TO GET OTHER INSURANCE
- 04 DO NOT NEED OR WANT INSURANCE
- 05 DID NOT LIKE PLAN/BENEFIT PACKAGE
- 06 DID NOT LIKE CHOICE OF DOCTORS OR HOSPITALS
- 07 NO REASON/JUST HAVEN'T GOTTEN AROUND TO IT
- 08 NOT WORKED THERE LONG ENOUGH/DON'T QUALIFY FOR EMPLOYER'S PLAN
- 24 I AM PARTICIPATING
- 25 DOES NOT OFFER INSURANCE
- 96 NOT ANSWERING THE QUESTION/NOT ENOUGH INFO
 - Examples include 'freshly divorced', 'does not cover pre-existing conditions'
- 97 OTHER
- 98 DK
- 99 REFUSED

2.1.11 Question G72d_1

- G72d_1. //Are you/ Is PERSON FROM S1// ineligible because //you have/he/she has//**not** worked long enough, because //you do **not**/PERSON FROM S1 does **not**//work enough hours, because //you are/he/she is// on call, because of medical problems, or for some other reason?
- 01 NOT WORKED THERE LONG ENOUGH
- 02 NOT WORKING ENOUGH HOURS
- 03 ON CALL
- 04 MEDICAL PROBLEMS
- 05 INSURANCE ONLY OFFERED TO MANAGERS/UNION/PROFESSIONALS
- 06 MISSED OPEN ENROLLMENT/WINDOW CLOSED
- 07 INELIGIBLE BECAUSE ON ANOTHER INSURANCE POLICY
- 08 AGE/ELDERLY
- 24 I AM PARTICIPATING
- 25 DOES NOT OFFER INSURANCE
- 96 NOT ANSWERING THE QUESTION/NOT ENOUGH INFO
 - Examples include 'against policy', 'financial', 'not salaried'
- 97 OTHER
- 98 DK
- 99 REFUSED

2.1.12 Question G73DA3

- G73DA3. What is the main reason //you/PERSON FROM S1//usually work less than 35 hours per week at//your/ his/ her// primary job?
- 01 COULD NOT FIND A FULL TIME JOB
- 02 WANTED TO WORK PART TIME OR ONLY ABLE TO WORK PART TIME
 - This code includes students and caregivers
- 03 HOURS CUT DUE TO BUSINESS CONDITIONS
- 04 HAVE ANOTHER JOB

05 TOO OLD/ELDERLY/RETIRED

06 MEDICAL REASONS

• Examples include 'disabled', 'medical leave', 'health reasons', 'depression'

07 TEMPORARY JOB

- Examples include 'other tasks', 'just business', 'always on call'
- 97 OTHER REASON
- 98 DK
- 99 REFUSED

2.1.13 Question: I90c

I90c. What is //your/PERSON FROM S1's// relationship to //PERSON FROM i90//?

- 01 MOTHER
- 02 FATHER
- 03 GRANDPARENT
- 04 AUNT/UNCLE
- 05 BROTHER/SISTER
- 06 OTHER RELATIVE
- 07 LEGAL GUARDIAN
- 08 FOSTER PARENT
- 09 OTHER NON-RELATIVE
- 10 STEP-MOTHER
- 11 STEP-FATHER
- 96 NOT ANSWERING THE QUESTION/NOT ENOUGH INFO
 - Example includes 'good', 'son/daughter"
- 97 OTHER
- 98 DK
- 99 REFUSED

2.1.14 Question J100Ca1

J100Ca1. Which Medicaid plan is //PERSON FROM i90//covered by?

- 01 HEALTHY FAMILIES
- 02 HEALTHY START
- 03 MEDICAID FOR THE AGED, BLIND AND DISABLED
- 10 AMERIGROUP COMMUNITY CARE
- 11 BUCKEYE COMMUNITY HEALTH PLAN
- 12 CARESOURCE
- 13 MOLINA HEALTHCARE
- 14 PARAMOUNT ADVANTAGE
- 15 UNITED HEALTH PLAN
- 16 WELLCARE

17 Ohio Medicaid OTHER

- 18 MEDICAID
 - Example includes 'Medicaid' or "Medicaid waiver"
- 97 OTHER
- 98 DK
- 99 REFUSED

2.1.15 Question NJ100f1

NJ100f1. What is the name of that program?

- 01 BUREAU FOR CHILDREN WITH MEDICAL HANDICAPS (BCMH)
- 02 MEDICAID (INCLUDES CARE SOURCE, HEALTHY START, & HEALTHY FAMILY, JOB & FAMILY SERVICES)
- 97 OTHER
- 98 DK
- 99 REFUSED

2.1.16 Question: J100g1

J100g1. What type of coverage is that?

- 01 MEDICAL, HMO, or PPO
- 02 SUPPLEMENTAL
- 03 DENTAL
- 04 VISION
- 05 MENTAL HEALTH
- 06 CANCER INSURANCE
- 07 HEARING
- 08 ACCIDENT, DISABILITY, LIFE, OR ANY INSURANCE THAT PAYS CASH BENEFITS AND NOT MEDICAL EXPENSES.
- 09 COBRA

10 COVERED THOUGH WORK

11 COVERED THOUGH SOMEONE ELSE'S WORK

• Includes mentions of "husband", "father", "spouse" "parent" or "wife" and MUST mention work (non-work related mentions would be coded as "12")

12 SPECIFIC PLAN NAME GIVEN

13 INSURED THROUGH A FAMILY MEMBER

• Includes mentions of "husband", "father", "spouse" "parent" or "wife" that do not include a work-related plan that may be directly purchased rather than at work)

14 STUDENT INSURANCE / THROUGH COLLEGE OR UNIVERSITY

15 MEDICAID

• Care Source, Molina Healthcare, Medicaid waiver programs, Buckeye Community Health Plan, Unison Health Plan, Paramount Advantage, AMERIGROUP)

- Example includes 'Anthem'
- 97 OTHER
- 98 DK
- 99 REFUSED

2.1.17 Question: J104d

J104d. Can you please tell me why was it a big problem for //PERSON FROM i90// to see a specialist?

- 01 NO SPECIALIST NEARBY
- 02 INSURANCE PLAN RESTRICTIONS/RULES
- 03 TROUBLE GETTING NEEDED REFERRAL TO A HEALTH PROVIDER
- 04 NO REASON TO GO (NO PROBLEMS)
- 05 HAVE NOT THOUGHT OF IT
- 06 OTHER PRIORITIES
- 07 COST/CAN'T AFFORD CARE/NO INSURANCE
- 08 NO REGULAR PROVIDER
- 09 PROFESSIONAL SAID NOT NEEDED (YET)
- 10 NO CONVENIENT APPOINTMENTS AVAILABLE
- 11 CANNOT GET TO THE OFFICE/CLINIC (TOO FAR AWAY, NO TRANSPORTATION)
- 12 CHILD/ADULT CARE PROBLEM
- 13 FEAR

14 DIFFICULTY GETTING A REFERAL/SPECIALIST TO ACCEPT PATIENT

- Example includes 'couldn't get in contact'
- 97 OTHER
- 98 DK
- 99 REFUSED

2.1.18 Question: J117b1

J117b1. What was the main reason // PERSON FROM i90's// previous health insurance ended?

- 01 PARENT LOST JOB OR CHANGED EMPLOYERS
- 02 PARENT GOT DIVORCED/ SEPARATED/DEATH OF SPOUSE
- 03 EMPLOYER STOPPED OFFERING INSURANCE
- 04 EMPLOYER DID NOT OFFER HEALTH INSURANCE/NOT ELIGIBLE FOR COVERAGE THROUGH EMPLOYER
- 05 INSURANCE TOO EXPENSIVE/ CAN NOT AFFORD THE PREMIUM
- 06 TOO MUCH PAPERWORK/HASSLE
- 07 SWITCHED TO ANOTHER PLAN

- Example includes 'Not in the country', 'company changed', 'father and daughter information is the same'
- 97 OTHER
- 98 DK
- 99 REFUSED

2.1.19 Question: K99a

K99A. Why does //PERSON FROM i90// no longer have this coverage?

- 01 EARN TOO MUCH MONEY (SUCH AS NEW JOB THAT PAYS MORE MONEY)
- 02 OBTAINED OTHER COVERAGE (SUCH AS NEW/BETTER JOB WITH BENEFITS, COMPANY CHANGED TO NEW PLAN ETC,)
- 03 DO NOT RECEIVE WELFARE/CASH ASSISTANCE/ADC/TANF
- 04 NO LONGER DISABLED OR DO NOT QUALIFY AS DISABLED.
- 05 NOT SURE WHY
- 06 DO NOT NEED ANYMORE
- 07 DO NOT WANT TO GO THROUGH APPLICATION PROCESS AGAIN
- 08 DO NOT NEED ANYMORE IN GOOD HEALTH
- 09 WAITING TO BECOME ELIGIBLE FOR COVERAGE
- 11 PAPERWORK DELAY OR PROBLEMS

- Example includes 'time had run out but still work part time for self employment'
- 97 OTHER
- 98 DK
- 99 REFUSED

2.1.20 Question N137a2

- N137a2. What kind of place does //PERSON FROM i90// go to **most** often? Is it a clinic or health center, a doctor's office, a hospital emergency room, a hospital outpatient department, or some other place?
- 01 DOCTOR'S OFFICE
- 02 HOSPITAL EMERGENCY ROOM
- 03 HOSPITAL OUTPATIENT DEPARTMENT
- 04 CLINIC OR HEALTH CENTER
- 05 SCHOOL (NURSE'S OFFICE, ATHLETIC TRAINER'S OFFICE, ETC)
- 06 FRIEND/RELATIVE
- 07 SOME OTHER PLACE
- 08 URGENT CARE CENTER
- 09 DOES NOT GO TO ONE PLACE MOST OFTEN
- 96 NOT ANSWERING THE QUESTION/NOT ENOUGH INFO
 - Example 'Daycare checkup'
- 98 DK
- 99 REFUSED

2.1.21 Question: N137e

- N137e. What is the main reason //PERSON FROM i90// usually goes to the emergency room instead of a doctor's office or clinic?
- 01 CAN'T AFFORD TO GO ELSEWHERE/THEY DON'T TURN ANYONE AWAY
- 02 DIDN'T KNOW WHERE ELSE TO GO
- 03 CONVENIENCE/DON'T NEED AN APPOINTMENT
- 04 BEST PLACE TO GET CARE FOR CONDITION
- 05 PREFERS/LIKES THIS AS USUAL SOURCE
- 06 NO REGULAR DOCTOR
- 07 NO INSURANCE

08 TAKES TOO LONG TO GET APPOINTMENT/ LIMITED HOURS

- 96 NOT ANSWERING THE QUESTION/NOT ENOUGH INFO
 - Example includes 'Asthma', 'for playing'
- 97 OTHER
- 98 DK
- 99 REFUSED

2.1.22 Question: N137f

N137f. What is the main reason //PERSON FROM i90// does not have a usual source of care?

- 01 SELDOM OR NEVER GET SICK
- 02 DON'T KNOW WHERE TO GO FOR CARE
- 03 PREVIOUS DOCTOR/SOURCE NO LONGER AVAILABLE
- 04 LIKE TO GO TO DIFFERENT PLACES FOR DIFFERENT HEALTH NEEDS
- 05 JUST CHANGED INSURANCE PLANS
- 06 DON'T USE OR LIKE DOCTORS/TREAT MYSELF
- 07 COST/TOO EXPENSIVE
- 08 NO INSURANCE
- 09 BOOKS/INTERNET/HOTLINE (GET NEEDED INFO FROM)

- 97 OTHER
- 98 DK
- 99 REFUSED

2.1.23 Question: NF67b

- NF67b. What is the **main** reason //you/PERSON FROM S1// usually//go/goes// to the emergency room instead of a doctor's office or clinic?
- 01 CAN'T AFFORD TO GO ELSEWHERE/THEY DON'T TURN ANYONE AWAY
- 02 DIDN'T KNOW WHERE ELSE TO GO
- 03 CONVENIENCE/DON'T NEED AN APPOINTMENT
- 04 BEST PLACE TO GET CARE FOR CONDITION
- 05 PREFERS/LIKES THIS AS USUAL SOURCE
- 06 NO REGULAR DOCTOR

07 AFTER REGULAR HOURS

NEEDED OTHER MEDICAL TREATMENT NOT PROVIDED AT DOCTOR'S OFFICE

• Examples include 'dialysis', 'xrays'

96 NOT ANSWERING THE QUESTION/NOT ENOUGH INFO

- Examples include 'time', health issues such as back pain/migraine, 'things happen'
- 97 OTHER
- 98 DK

08

99 REFUSED

2.1.24 Question: NF67C

NF67C. What is the **main** reason //you do/PERSON FROM S1 does//**not** have a place where (you usually go/(he/she) usually goes) for care?

- 01 SELDOM OR NEVER GET SICK
- 02 DON'T KNOW WHERE TO GO FOR CARE
- 03 PREVIOUS DOCTOR/SOURCE NO LONGER AVAILABLE
- 04 LIKE TO GO TO DIFFERENT PLACES FOR DIFFERENT HEALTH NEEDS
- 05 JUST CHANGED INSURANCE PLANS
- 06 DON'T USE OR LIKE DOCTORS/TREAT MYSELF
- 07 COST/TOO EXPENSIVE
- 08 NO INSURANCE
- 09 USE BOOKS/INTERNET/HOTLINE (get needed info from)
- 10 DOCTOR COMES TO PATIENT
- 11 LACK OF TRANSPORTATION/WAY TO GET TO THE DOCTOR
- 96 NOT ANSWERING THE QUESTION/NOT ENOUGH INFO
 - Examples include 'doesn't have regular doctor', 'not worried about it', 'mommy's lap'
- 97 OTHER
- 98 DK
- 99 REFUSED

2.1.25 Question: NF68a

NF68a. What was the main reason //you/PERSON FROM S1// could not get dental care?

- 01 TOO EXPENSIVE/COULDN'T AFFORD IT
- 02 NO INSURANCE/INSURANCE DIDN'T COVER CARE
- 03 COULDN'T FIND DENTIST
- 04 DENTIST WOULDN'T ACCEPT MEDICAL CARD
- 05 DIFFICULTY OR DELAY IN GETTING AN APPOINTMENT
- 06 DENTIST/SOMEONE ELSE BESIDES INSURER SAID CARE WASN'T NEEDED
- 07 TRANSPORTATION
- 08 MEDICALLY UNABLE TO MAKE THE APPOINTMENT
- 09 SCARED
- 10 CANCELLED APPT

- Examples include 'billing dispute', convenience, survey, teeth broke, made too much money
- 97 OTHER
- 98 DK
- 99 REFUSED

2.1.26 Question: NK106

NK106. Why didn't anyone try to get Medicaid, Healthy Families, or Healthy Start coverage for //PERSON FROM i90//?

- 01 CHILD ALREADY HAS INSURANCE
- 02 CHILD DOES NOT NEED THE COVERAGE
- 03 EARN TOO MUCH MONEY (SUCH AS NEW JOB THAT PAYS MORE MONEY)
- 04 DIDN'T THINK CHILD WAS ELIGIBLE OR QUALIFIED
- 05 DIDN'T KNOW ABOUT IT/NEVER HEARD OF IT
- 06 APPLICATION PROCESS TOO INVOLVED/HASSLE/TOO INTRUSIVE
- 07 CHILD WAS PREVIOUSLY TURNED DOWN
- 08 ANTICIPATE OBTAINING ADDITIONAL COVERAGE / FINDING ANOTHER JOB
- 09 APPLICATION IN PROCESS
- 96 NOT ANSWERING THE QUESTION/NOT ENOUGH INFO
 - Example 'he is an adult'
- 97 OTHER
- 98 DK
- 99 REFUSED

2.1.27 Question: NK105

NK105. Why was //PERSON FROM i90// unable to get Medicaid, Healthy Families, or Healthy Start?

- 01 EARN TOO MUCH MONEY (SUCH AS NEW JOB THAT PAYS MORE MONEY)
- 02 ALREADY HAVE INSURANCE
- 03 PARENT WORKING
- 04 APPLICATION IN PROCESS/WAITING FOR APPLICATION
- 05 APPLICATION DENIED/REFUSED/DIDN'T QUALIFY
- 97 OTHER
- 98 DK
- 99 REFUSED

2.1.28 Question: NK99d

NK99d. Why didn't anyone try to get Medicaid, Healthy Families, or Healthy Start coverage for //PERSON FROM i90//?

- 01 CHILD ALREADY HAS INSURANCE
- 02 CHILD DOES NOT NEED THE COVERAGE
- 03 EARN TOO MUCH MONEY (SUCH AS NEW JOB THAT PAYS MORE MONEY)
- 04 DIDN'T THINK CHILD WAS ELIGIBLE OR QUALIFIED
- 05 DIDN'T KNOW ABOUT IT/NEVER HEARD OF IT
- 06 APPLICATION PROCESS TOO INVOLVED/HASSLE/TOO INTRUSIVE
- 07 CHILD WAS PREVIOUSLY TURNED DOWN
- 08 ANTICIPATE OBTAINING ADDITIONAL COVERAGE / FINDING ANOTHER JOB
- 09 APPLICATION IN PROCESS
- 97 OTHER
- 98 DK
- 99 REFUSED

2.1.29 Question: NO139

NO139. What was the main reason //PERSON FROM i90// could not get dental care?

- 01 TOO EXPENSIVE/COULDN'T AFFORD IT
- 02 NO INSURANCE/INSURANCE DIDN'T COVER CARE
- 03 COULDN'T FIND DENTIST
- 04 DENTIST WOULDN'T ACCEPT MEDICAL CARD
- 05 DIFFICULTY OR DELAY IN GETTING AN APPOINTMENT
- 06 DENTIST/SOMEONE ELSE BESIDES INSURER SAID CARE WASN'T NEEDED
- 07 TRANSPORTATION
- 08 CHILD NOT OLD ENOUGH
- 97 OTHER
- 98 DK
- 99 REFUSED

2.1.30 Question: P150

- P150. Which one or more of the following would you say is //PERSON FROM i90's// race? Is //he/she// White, Black or African-American, Asian, Native American, Alaskan Native, Native Hawaiian, Pacific Islander, or some other race I have not mentioned?
- 01 WHITE
- 02 BLACK OR AFRICAN AMERICAN
- 03 ASIAN
- 04 NATIVE AMERICAN, AMERICAN INDIAN, OR ALASKA NATIVE
- 05 NATIVE HAWAIIAN OR OTHER PACIFIC ISLANDER
- 06 HISPANIC, LATINO

- Examples include mixed or bi-racial without specification.
- 97 OTHER
- 98 DK
- 99 REFUSED
 - If a person indicated ethnicity such as Caucasian, Irish, German, Italian, Lebanese, Near Easterner, Arab, or Polish, that response was coded as White. Also having origins in any of the original peoples of Europe, the Middle East, or North Africa. It includes people who indicate their race or races as White, Caucasian, Irish, German, Italian, Lebanese, Near Easterner, Arab, or Polish; Europe: Austria, Belgium, Britain, Croatia, Cyprus; Czech Republic, Estonia, France, Germany, Greece, Holland, Hungary, Ireland, Italy, Luxembourg, Malta, Monaco, Poland, Portugal, Romania, Denmark, Finland, Iceland, Norway, Sweden, Slovenia, Spain, & Switzerland; Middle East: Bahrain, Cyprus, Iran, Iraq, Israel, Jordan, Kuwait, Lebanon, Palestine, Qatar, Saudi Arabia, Syria, Turkey, Yemen; North Africa: Algeria, Canary Islands (Spain); Egypt, Libya, Sudan, Morocco, Tunisia.
 - Responses such as African American, Negro, Nigerian, or Haitian were coded as Black. It includes people who indicate their race or races are Black, African American, Negro, Nigerian, or Haitian.
 - Responses that indicated ethnicity of the Far East, Southeast Asia, or the Indian subcontinent but not fitting into the given Asian races, were coded as Other Asian with the Asian race recorded.
 - Also, responses such as "Native American" were coded as American Indian.
 - Each open-ended response given was reviewed to determine whether the Hispanic question should be re-coded. The Hispanic question was coded as "yes" when the response indicated the person was Cuban, Mexican, Puerto Rican, South American, Latino, Central American, or any other Spanish culture or origin regardless of race.
 - "Hispanic or Latino origin is: A person of Cuban, Mexican, Puerto Rican, South American, Central American, or other Spanish culture or origin, regardless of race."
 - Asian origin is Chinese, Japanese, Korean, Taiwanese, Cambodian, Indonesian, Vietnamese, Laotian, Philippino, Malaysian, or from: India, Singapore, Thailand, Nepal, Pakistan, Afghanistan, Bangladesh, Bhutan, Maldives, Sri Lanka, Timor-Leste.

• Responses that should have been coded rather than recorded in the "other" field were backcoded. For example there were some responses such as "Chinese" or "Filipino", which should have been coded as Asian.

2.1.31 Question: PS9a

PS9a. In what city or town (do you/does PERSON FROM S1) live?

ANSWERS WERE RECODED INTO COUNTY CODES WHEN POSSIBLE

001	ADAMS	061	HAMILTON	121	NOBLE
003	ALLEN	063	HANCOCK	123	OTTAWA
005	ASHLAND	065	HARDIN	125	PAULDING
007	ASHTABULA	067	HARRISON	127	PERRY
009	ATHENS	069	HENRY	129	PICKAWAY
011	AUGLAIZE	071	HIGHLAND	131	PIKE
013	BELMONT	073	HOCKING	133	PORTAGE
015	BROWN	075	HOLMES	135	PREBLE
017	BUTLER	077	HURON	137	PUTNAM
019	CARROLL	079	JACKSON	139	RICHLAND
021	CHAMPAIGN	081	JEFFERSON	141	ROSS
023	CLARK	083	KNOX	143	SANDUSKY
025	CLERMONT	085	LAKE	145	SCIOTO
027	CLINTON	087	LAWRENCE	147	SENECA
029	COLUMBIANA	089	LICKING	149	SHELBY
031	COSHOCTON	091	LOGAN	151	STARK
033	CRAWFORD	093	LORAIN	153	SUMMIT
035	CUYAHOGA	095	LUCAS	155	TRUMBULL
037	DARKE	097	MADISON	157	TUSCARAWAS
039	DEFIANCE	099	MAHONING	159	UNION
041	DELAWARE	101	MARION	161	VAN WERT
043	ERIE	103	MEDINA	163	VINTON
045	FAIRFIELD	105	MEIGS	165	WARREN
047	FAYETTE	107	MERCER	167	WASHINGTON
049	FRANKLIN	109	MIAMI	169	WAYNE
051	FULTON	111	MONROE	171	WILLIAMS
053	GALLIA	113	MONTGOMERY	173	WOOD
055	GEAUGA	115	MORGAN	175	WYANDOT
057	GREENE	117	MORROW		
059	GUERNSEY	119	MUSKINGUM		

996 NOT ANSWERING THE QUESTION/NOT ENOUGH INFO

• Examples include 'Buckeye' and 'tired' and 'uncertain'

- 997 OTHER
- 998 DK
- 999 REFUSED

2.1.32 Question: S9

S9.	In what county in the State of Ohio (do	you/does PERSON FROM S1) live?

001	ADAMS	061	HAMILTON	121	NOBLE
003	ALLEN	063	HANCOCK	123	OTTAWA
005	ASHLAND	065	HARDIN	125	PAULDING
007	ASHTABULA	067	HARRISON	127	PERRY
009	ATHENS	069	HENRY	129	PICKAWAY
011	AUGLAIZE	071	HIGHLAND	131	PIKE
013	BELMONT	073	HOCKING	133	PORTAGE
015	BROWN	075	HOLMES	135	PREBLE
017	BUTLER	077	HURON	137	PUTNAM
019	CARROLL	079	JACKSON	139	RICHLAND
021	CHAMPAIGN	081	JEFFERSON	141	ROSS
023	CLARK	083	KNOX	143	SANDUSKY
025	CLERMONT	085	LAKE	145	SCIOTO
027	CLINTON	087	LAWRENCE	147	SENECA
029	COLUMBIANA	089	LICKING	149	SHELBY
031	COSHOCTON	091	LOGAN	151	STARK
033	CRAWFORD	093	LORAIN	153	SUMMIT
035	CUYAHOGA	095	LUCAS	155	TRUMBULL
037	DARKE	097	MADISON	157	TUSCARAWAS
039	DEFIANCE	099	MAHONING	159	UNION
041	DELAWARE	101	MARION	161	VAN WERT
043	ERIE	103	MEDINA	163	VINTON
045	FAIRFIELD	105	MEIGS	165	WARREN
047	FAYETTE	107	MERCER	167	WASHINGTON
049	FRANKLIN	109	MIAMI	169	WAYNE
051	FULTON	111	MONROE	171	WILLIAMS
053	GALLIA	113	MONTGOMERY	173	WOOD
055	GEAUGA	115	MORGAN	175	WYANDOT
057	GREENE	117	MORROW		
059	GUERNSEY	119	MUSKINGUM		

- Examples include 'Buckeye' and 'tired' and 'uncertain'
- 997 OTHER
- 998 DK
- 999 REFUSED

2.1.33 Question: S17

- S17. Which one or more of the following would you say is //your / PERSON FROM S1's//race? //Are you / Is PERSON FROM S1// White, Black or African American, Asian, Native American, American Indian, Alaskan Native, Native Hawaiian, Pacific Islander, or some other race I have not mentioned? [CODE ALL THAT APPLY]
- 01 WHITE
- 02 BLACK OR AFRICAN AMERICAN
- 03 ASIAN
- 04 NATIVE AMERICAN, AMERICAN INDIAN, OR ALASKAN NATIVE
- 05 NATIVE HAWAIIAN OR OTHER PACIFIC ISLANDER
- 06 HISPANIC, LATINO, SPANISH
- 96 NOT ANSWERING THE QUESTION/NOT ENOUGH INFO
 - Examples include mixed or bi-racial not specified, mixed-American, Melting pot, human race,
- 97 OTHER
- 98 DK
- 99 REFUSED

2.1.34 Question: S18a

- S18a. Do you consider //yourself/PERSON FROM S1// to be White Hispanic, Black Hispanic, Asian Hispanic, Native American Hispanic, Pacific Islander Hispanic, or some other race and Hispanic?
- 01 WHITE HISPANIC
- 02 BLACK OR AFRICAN AMERICAN HISPANIC
- 03 ASIAN HISPANIC
- 04 NATIVE AMERICAN, AMERICAN INDIAN, OR ALASKAN NATIVE HISPANIC
- 05 NATIVE HAWAIIAN OR PACIFIC ISLANDER HISPANIC

- 97 OTHER RACE HISPANIC
- 98 DK
- 99 REFUSES TO DISCRIMINATE